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Chartered Accountants Email: info@rkassociates.com.np

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Disclaimer of Opinion

We were engaged to audit the financial statements of Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise thie balance sheet as at Ashad 32 2079 (July 16, 2022), income statement,
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and notes to accounts.

Because of the matters described in the Basis of Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we have not been able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding cumulative effect of not restating financial items and
making additional disclosure as required by provision for first time adoption of Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards to provide a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the financial
statements which have not been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

The company has prepared financial statements based on Nepal Accounting Standards as disclosed in note
no 2.2 of Significant Accounting Polices and Notes to Accounts but the applicable financial reporting
framework for entities those having public accountability was changed to of Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards from Nepal Accounting Standards effective from fiscal year July 15, 2021. Para 21 of NFRS
required that the entity’s first Nepal Financial Reporting Standards compliant financial statements shall
include at least three statements of financial position, two statements of comprehensive income, two separate
income statements (if presented), two statements of cash flows and two statements of changes in equity and
related notes, including comparative information.

However, Nepal Financial Reporting Standards based financial statements have not been prepared and
financial information of previous years have not been restated and disclosed based on provisions of Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards 1. The cumulative effect of not restating, presenting and disclosing financial
information based on Nepal Financial Reporting Staternents is uncertain and could be material and pervasive.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, metters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or o cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to de so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

4
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with Nepal
Standards on Auditing and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s
Handbook of The Code of Ethics For Professional Accountants

Report en Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As per the requirements of section 108(2) of the company’s act, the financial statements were to be reported
as per the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards as prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Nepal. However, the company has prepared the financial statements on earlier applicable Nepal Accounting
Standards due to which we were unable to express the opinion regarding the compliance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards.

Principal
R. K. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
Date: Magh 27, 2080
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Balance Sheet
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As at 32 Ashad 2079
Amount in Rs.
Particulars Schedule Current Year Previous Year
Assets
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 1 8,669,653 10,196,165
Capital Work In Progress 2 2,539,679,560 1,986,913,239
Investments 3 16,716,600 16,716,600
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4 7,302,913 29,716,353
Advances and Other Receivables 5 118,882,683 117,176,223
Deposits and Margins 6 14,022,473 15,195,473
Total Assets 2,705,273,882 2,175,914,052
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 7 660,000,000 326,632,500
Reserve and Surplus 8 (74,679,518) (56,730,445)
Advance for Share Capital - 168,065,000
Non Current Liabilities
Long Term Loan 9 1,656,007,191 1,379,859,528
Current Liabilities
Short Term Loan 10 295,000,000 167,727,178
Trade and Other Payables 11 168,946,208 190,360,291
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,705,273,882 2,175,914,052
Significant Accounting Polices and Notes to Accounts 14

Schedule 1 to 14 forms integral part of the financial statements

Bijaya Man Sherchan Dinesh Prashad Shrestha Binod Thakali
Chairman Director Director
Sagar Nepal Hem Nidhi Sharma

Accountant Director

Date: 2080.09.16
Plance: Kathmandu

=

As per our report of even date

CA. Rabin Kumar Shrestha

Principal
R. K. Associates

Chartered Accountants




e

WOl, JAdl a1 33T dIftis HEme el

Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Income Statement
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Schedule This Year Previous Year
Revenue

Sales Revenue - -

Interest Income 368 11,015

Other Income 12 435,600 442,400
Total Revenue 435,968 453,415
Less : Administrative Expenses 13 16,462,498 14,219,394
Less : Depreciation Expenses 1,922,542 2,296,474
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (17,949,072) (16,062,454)
Provision for Income Tax - -
Deferred Tax Income/(Loss) - -
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year (17,949,072) (16,062,454)

Schedule 1 to 14 forms integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

Bijaya Man Sherchan Dinesh Prashad Shrestha Binod Thakali CA. Rabin Kumar Shrestha
Chairman Director Director Principal
R. K. Associates
Chartered Accountants
Sagar Nepal Hem Nidhi Sharma
Accountant Director

Date: 2080.09.16
Plance: Kathmandu
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079
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Amount in Rs.

Particulars This Year Previous Year
A. Cash Flow from operating activities:

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax (17,949,072) (16,062,454)
Adjustment for:

Depreciation 1,922,542 2,296,474
Operating profit/loss before working capital change (16,026,530) (13,765,979)
Change in Advances and Other Receivables (1,706,460) 212,647,533
Change in Deposits and Margins 1,173,000 17,764,278
Change in Trade and Other Payables (21,414,083) 145,752,895
Net cash flow from operating activities ( A ) (37,974,073) 362,398,727
B. Cash Flow from Investing activities:

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (396,030) (67,282)
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - -
Change in Investment - (16,716,600)

Capital Work In Progress

(552,766,321)

(1,128,854,123)

Net cash flow from investing activities ( B) (553,162,351) (1,145,638,005)
C. Cash Flow from Financing activities:

Increase in Share Capital 333,367,500 156,776,400

Increase in Share Calls in Advance (168,065,000) (69,779,401)
Increase in Loans Liabilities 403,420,485 717,175,170

Net cash flow in financing activities (C) 568,722,985 804,172,169

Net increases/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (22,413,439) 20,932,891

Cash and bank equivalents at the beginning of the year 29,716,353 8,783,462

Cash and bank balance at the end of the year 7,302,913 29,716,353

Bijaya Man Sherchan Dinesh Prashad Shrestha

Chairman Director Director
Sagar Nepal Hem Nidhi Sharma

Accountant Director

Date: 2080.09.16
Plance: Kathmandu

{0

Binod Thakali

As per our report of even date

CA. Rabin Kumar Shrestha

Principal
R. K. Associates

Chartered Accountants
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079

Amount in Rs.

. Paid up Advance for Reserve &

Description Capital Share Capital Surplus Total
Opening Balance 326,632,500 168,065,000 (56,730,445) 437,967,055
Adjustments for

Profit/Loss acoounts -
Restated opening Balance 326,632,500 168,065,000 (56,730,445) 437,967,055
Increase in Share Capital 333,367,500 (168,065,000) - 165,302,500
Net profit/(Loss) for the year - (17,949,072) (17,949,072)
Balance as on 31-03-2078 660,000,000 - (74,679,518) 585,320,482

As per our report of even date

Bijaya Man Sherchan Dinesh Prashad Shrestha Binod Thakali CA. Rabin Kumar Shrestha
Chairman Director Director Principal
R. K. Associates

Chartered Accountants

Sagar Nepal Hem Nidhi Sharma
Accountant Director

Date: 2080.09.16
Plance: Kathmandu
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Schedules to Financial Statements

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Schedule - 2 Capital Work in Progress
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Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Land and Land Development 17,019,990 16,582,623
Civil Works 1,055,782,088 801,124,920
Environment Mitigation 31,882,057 20,730,049
Infrastructure Development 57,027,220 71,151,171
Hydromechanical Works 404,110,058 337,040,897
Electromechanical Works 361,544,624 362,990,261
Project Supervision and Management 120,752,266 103,423,068
Miscellaneous and Insurance 6,929,649 4,191,623
Site office Building 154,093 -
Transmission Line & Switchyard 43,599,094 4,250,282
Interest During Construction 401,680,966 226,230,890
Project Development Expenses 39,197,455 39,197,455
Total 2,539,679,560 1,986,913,239

Schedule - 3 Investment

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Riverfalls Power Limited
(167,166 promoter shares of Rs. 100 per share)

16,716,600

16,716,600

Total

16,716,600

16,716,600

Schedule - 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash In Hand 54,257 39,548
Prabhu Bank Nepal Limited 585,538 585,349
Century Bank Limited 400,633 191,055
Civil Bank Limited 136,350 181,126
Citizen Bank International Limited 6,119,823 28,380,481
Rastriya Banijya Bank 6,312 338,793

Total 7,302,913 29,716,353
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Schedules to Financial Statements

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Schedule - 5 Advances and Other Receivables
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Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Mobilisation & Advance Payment

Dhaulagairi Construction and Development Pvt Ltd. 68,060,821 18,274,027
BTM Suppliers 150,000
Pabita-Geotech JV - 20,556,200
Swayambhu-MM JV 1,862,232 60,660
Dawn Hydro Mechanical Works Pvt Ltd 14,705,895 37,202,497
Mabhavir Shree International Pvt. Lt 6,121,345 15,248,521
WWS Wasserkraft 784,679 784,679
Ishan Construction - 679,017
Angel Engineering Consultancy Pvt. Ltd 74,061 169,680
TAC Hydro Engineers - 1,011,113
Ramesh K Basnet - Land Advance 10,539,850 10,539,850
Bharat Lamichhane Thapa - Land Advance 9,870,567 9,870,567
Tactical Solution - 83,022
Shastika Architect and Construction 2,288,287 -
Bharat Lamichhane Thapa 703,044 482,636
Other Receivables
Khani Khola Hydropower Company Ltd. 255,915 125,235
Pashupati Energy Development Company 360,743 162,000
Sundry advances & Receivables 2,173,747 1,038,635
Advance Income Tax 931,498 887,884
Total 118,882,683 117,176,223

Schedule - 6 Deposits and Margins

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Deposits

Vidut Bikas Bibhag 700,000 700,000

Custom Department 3,000,000 3,000,000

World Link 2,000 2,000

Margins

Guarantee Margin 1,894,000 1,894,000

LC Margin 8,426,473 9,599,473
Total 14,022,473 15,195,473

(=)
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Schedules to Financial Statements

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Schedule - 7 Share Capital
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Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Share Capital

10,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.100 each 1,000,000,000 600,000,000
Issued Share Capital

10,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.100 each 1,000,000,000 600,000,000
Paid Up Share Capital

6,600,000 (3,266,325) ordinary shares of Rs.100 each fully paid 660,000,000 326,632,500
Total 660,000,000 326,632,500

Schedule - 8 Reserve and Surplus

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Accumulated Profit/Loss up to previous year (56,730,445) (40,667,992)
Profit/(Loss) during the year (17,949,072) (16,062,454)
Total (74,679,518) (56,730,445)

Schedule - 9 Long Term Loans

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Century Commerical Bank Limited 472,406,769 399,385,402
Citizens Bank International Limtied 709,122,314 598,753,858
Civil Bank Limited 474,478,109 381,720,268

Total 1,656,007,191 1,379,859,528

Schedule - 10 Short Term Loans

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bridge Gap Loan - Citizens Bank International Limited 10,000,000 167,727,178
Demand Loan - - Citizens Bank International Limited 285,000,000 -
Total 295,000,000 167,727,178

(=)
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

Schedules to Financial Statements

As at 32 Ashad 2079

Schedule - 11 Trade and Other Payales
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Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

TDS - Payable 965,130 2,808,042
Audit Fees Payable 111,500 83,625
House Rent Payable - 18,360
Jaya Pashupati Constrcution Pvt Ltd - 62,440
Site Expenses Payable 137,220 454,341
Sarsij Travels 59,730 55,340
Project Allowance Payable 127,500 382,500
K & D Associates - 451,575
ICRA Nepal - 34,500
B. R. Auto Pvt Ltd 148,985 62,690
Tactical Solution - 83,452
Srijana Workshop 69,050 -
Swayambhu Construction Pvt Ltd - 4,733,979
Dawn Hydro Mechanical Works Pvt Ltd 11,727,935 10,000,000
Pabita - Geotech JV 6,756,006 10,782,436
Dhaulagir Construction - 2,636,234
Mabhavir Shree International Pvt Ltd 2,954,546 35,916,930
Budhabhumi Engineering Works 3,866,490 677,400
DEVI Shiddhakali Petrol Pump 493,728 -
Angel Engineering Consultancy Pvt. Ltd 141,975 -
ManManaram Motors Pvt Ltd 73,395 -
National Dhuwani Sewa 500,000 500,000
Retention - Payable 121,377,933 101,486,391
Underground Space Eng. Pvt Ltd - 433,338
Ms. Chanda Shah - 320,000
Meeting Allowance Payable 34,000 102,000
Salary Payable 1,286,745 134,355
CIT Payable 739,696 958,628
Gratuity Payable 253,954 361,401
Other Payable 17,120,690 16,820,334
Total 168,946,208 190,360,291

[
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Kathmandu, Nepal

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2079

Schedule - 12 Other Income
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Amount in Rs.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

House Rent 435,600 442,400

Other Income - -
Total 435,600 442,400

Schedule - 13 Administrative Expenses

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Advertisement & Publicity 23,000 158,226
Audit fee 113,000 84,750
Bank Charges 30,209 3,205
AGM Expenses 25,835 11,000
Board Meeting Allowances 40,000 120,000
Committee Meeting Allowances 123,522 41,174
Consultancy Fees 690,000 690,000
Rating Expenses 613,967 -
Office Rent 1,452,000 1,391,500
Insurance Premium 237,544 274,367
Fuel Expenses 365,404 206,183
Repair and Maintenance 233,855 204,155
News Paper & Periodeiclas 57,240 27,120
Office Cleaning & Maintenance 3,033 18,481
Postages & Courier 1,712 890
Printing and stationary 158,565 144,791
Certification Fees 73,450 -
Registration, renewal & membership 665,825 367,300
Telephone & Communication 208,365 243,147
Utilty Expneses 116,691 87,343
Office Operating Expenses 52,483 43,604
Staff Salary & Allowances 9,512,499 9,201,535
Leave Pay 44,000 166,250
Travelling and Daily Allowance 1,257,600 564,450
Travelling Expenses 286,402 154,723
Misc. Expenses 76,297 15,200
Total 16,462,498 14,219,394

(26
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Kathmandu, Nepal

Schedule 14
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

General Information

Mayakhola Hydropower Company was a Private limited company registered under companies Act of Nepal vide Regd. No.
73163/066/067 on 20 Jestha, 2067. The company has been converted to Public Limited Company (Public Ltd. No.
159553/073/074) on Mangsir, 20 2073 under the Company Act, 2063. The company is formed to carry out Hydropower
Projects in Nepal. The company has acquired license for one of super six projects called Maya Khola Hydropower Project
(14.9 MW) from Nepal Electricity Authority and has started its construction.

Approval of Financial Statements by Board of Directors
The Financial Statements for the year ended on 32 Ashad 2079 was approved for issue on Poush 16, 2080. The Board of
Directors acknowledges the responsibility of preparation of financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies & Notes to the Accounts
Accounting Convention
The financial statements are presented on a historical cost convention, following accural basis of accounting.

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Accounting Standards (“NAS”), unless otherswise
stated, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") and in compliance with Companies Act, 2063.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP and NAS requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of balance sheet. Actual amount could differ
from those estimates. Any differences from those estimates are recorded in the period in which they are identified.

Going Concern

The Directors have made an assessment of Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited ability continue as going concern and
is satisfied that it has resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore Board is not aware of any
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt upon company's ability to continue as going concern and do not intend
either to liquidate or cease operations of it. Therefore, the financial statements are prepared on going concern.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue and
associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.

The Project is under construction phase and no revenue has been generated.

Property Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant & Equipment have been accounted at cost of purchase/construction plus the incidental expenses related to
such purchase/construction.

Depreciation on PPE has been calculated on diminishing balance value method. Depreciation Rate and method has been
adopted as prescribed by Income Tax Act, 2058.

Capital Work in Progress

All direct expenses in connection with development and construction of the projec have been presented as Capital Work In
Progress. Borrowing cost incurred during the year are against the amount borrowed for the purpose of construction, hence the
interest thereon is treated as Capital Work in Progress, which shall be capitalised on the respective assets upon completion of
the project.

Investment

The Company has investment of Rs. 1,671,600 in Riverfalls Power Limited. The investment are in the form of equity shares
and are stated at Rs.100/share.

Rg
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Income Tax

Current Tax: Provision for current tax is recognized as per applicable provisions of Income Tax Act, 2058 & Rules, 2059
along with amendments that are applicable in particular income year. No income tax provision is provided as company is
bearing net losses.

Deferrred Tax: Deferred taxes are recognized on temporary differences that arise among financial accounts and tax
accounts. A deferred tax asset is recognized on future deductible difference where as deferred tax liability is recognized on
future taxable difference arising as on balance sheet date. Company has not recognised deferred tax assets on account of
unused carry forward tax losses.

Required Commercial Operation Date (RCOD)

ROCD of the Mayo Khola Hydropower project as per fourth amendement in Power Purchase Agreement with Nepal
Electricity dated 2080/08/13 is 2079.10.03.

As per Power Purchase Agreement entered between Mayo Khola Hydropower Limited and Nepal Electricty Authority on
Mangsir 2070 if the Acutal Commecial Operation Date is not within six months after RCOD, the project shall pay penalty
and fines to Nepal Electrictiy Authority calculated as below.

Lower of A or B

A={0.28*Energy computed for delayed days (from 6 months of RCOD to COD) on the basis of contract energy* PPA Rate
at COD}

B= Interest computed as per loan agrement for the said period - {0.17*energy computed for delayed days (from 6 months of
RCOD to COD) on the basis of contract Energy* PPA Rate at COD}

Actual Commercial Operation of Date of the project as per the letter dated 2080.04.23 of Nepal Eectricity Authority, Power
Trade Department is 2080.04.22.

Related Paries Transaction
Directors Salary and/or Allowance

Name Relationship Transaction Amount Rs.
1. Bijaya Man Sherchan Executive Chairman Salary & Allowance 4,103,892
2. Dinesh Prashad Shrestha  Director Project Allowance 600,000
3. Binod Thakali Director Project Allowance 600,000
4. Hem Nidhi Sharma Director Project Allowance 300,000

Total 5,603,892

Performance Bond Guarantee

The Company has deposited a performance bond guarantee amounting to Rs. 8,940,000 for signing Power Purchase
Agreement with Nepal Electricity Authority and Rs 10,000,000 for development of Hydropower project to Department of
Electricity Development.

Figures of previous years have been restated wherever necessary.
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Chartered Accountants Kathmandu, Nepal
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of
M/s Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of M/s Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
(the Company). which comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 31, 2080, and
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows and
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and corporate information, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other financial information.

In our opinion. the accompanying financial statements present fairly. in all material
respects. the financial position of the Company as at Ashadh 31, 2080, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS).

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other
cthical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s
Handbook of The Code of Ethics For Professional Accountants. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going coneern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

I'hose charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level ofasyr&ncq. but
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is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a materia
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due 1o fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions.
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control,

e Evaluate the appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence. and where applicable, related safeguards.
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= = - Kirtipur Municipality -1,
M Tiwari & Associates TG B0, BadioE,
Chartered Accountants Kathmandu, Nepal
tiwarimuralidhar@gmail.com Tel: 4331060, Mob:9861583579

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As per the requirements of Section 115 of the Companies Act, 2063 (First Amendment 2074).
we further report that;

a)

b)

C)

d)

CA Murali Dhar Tiwari

Proprietor

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit,

In our opinion the Company has kept proper books of account as required by law so far, as
appears from our examinations of those Books

The financial statements are in agreement with the books of account.

[n our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us, the financial statement the said the statement of financial position. statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2063 (First Amendment 2074) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view:

i Inthe case of Statement of Financial Position, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31 Ashadh, 2080: and

i, In the case of Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, of
the results of operations of the Company for the year ended on 31 Ashadh, 2080: and

ili. In the case of the Statement of Cash Flows. of Cash inflow and outflow of Company
for the year ended on that date.

Neither we have come across any of the information about the misappropriation of fund by

the dircetors or any of the representative or company's staffs during the course of our audit

nor have we received any such information from the management.

No accounting fraud has been observed during the course of our audit.

L Al

M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date: Bhadra 27, 2081
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

UDIN: 240923CA00064AxF pj
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashad 31, 2080 (16 July 2023)
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Figures in NPR

Note Restated* Restated*
31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 6,706,004 8,642,261 10,151,959
Intangible assets 5 3,027,748,714 27,391 44,206
Intangible assets under development 6 - 2,573,700,641 2,012,373,070
Other non-current assets 7 236,004,328 115,160,780 114,962,468
Total Non-Current Assets 3,270,459,046 2,697,531,073 2,137,531,703
Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 27,649,546 7,302,913 29,716,353
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 7,451,473 10,320,473 11,493,474
Trade Receivables 10 4,131,758 - -
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI 11 41,791,500 38,949,678 16,716,600
Other financial assets 12 11,036,885 5,792,405 4,327,870
Current tax assets 13 995,408 931,498 887,884
Total current assets 93,056,571 63,296,968 63,142,181
Total assets 3.363.515.617 2.760.828.041 2.200.673.884
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 14 1,000,000,000 660,000,000 494,697,500
Other equity 15 (19.432,656) (24,683.,629) (31,970,614)
Total Equity 980.567.344 635,316,371 462,726,886
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 2,202,299,935 1,666,007,191 1,547,586,706
Deferred Tax Liability 17 6,268,726 5,558,270 -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,208,568,660 1,671,565,461 1,547,586,706
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 16 25,000,000 285,000,000 -
Trade & Other Payables 18 124,835,582 151,825,519 173,539,958
Other financial liabilities 19 24,544,032 17,120,690 16,820,334
Provisions - - -
Total Current Liabilities 174,379,613 453.946.209 190.360.292
Total Liabilities 2,382,948,273 2,125,511,670 1,737,946.998
Total Equity and Liabilities 3.363.515.617 2.760.828.041 2.200.673.884

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Biiaya Man Sherchan Dinesh Prasad Shrestha

Chairperson Director
Hem Nidhi Sharma Sagar Nepal
Director Finance Manager

Date: 2081 Bhadra 27
Place: Kathmandu

EE!

Binod Thakali
Director

As per our report of even date

CA. Murali Dhar Tiwari

Proprietor

M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Figures in NPR
Note 2079-80 2078-79
Revenue 20 461,850,104 2,573,700,640.76
Cost of Sales 21 460,532,434 2,573,700.640.76
Gross profit 1,317,670 -
Other income 22 22,064,654 435,968.34
Administrative and other operating expenses 23 13,276,935 9,793,582.30
Finance Costs 24 6,985,782 30,209.23
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 3,119,607 (9,387,823.19)
Income Tax Expense
Current tax _ B
Deferred tax - _
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations 3,119,607 (9,387,823.19)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods
i. Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through OCI 2,841,822 22,233,078.00
ii. Acturial Gain/(Loss) on defined Employment benefit - -
iii. Gain/Loss on Revaluation - -
iv. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (710,456) (5,558,269.50)
Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax 2,131,366 16,674,808.50
Total Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax 5,250,973 7,286,985.31
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 100 each
Basic Earnings per share - Rs. 24 0 (2.87)
Diluted Earnings per share - Rs. 24 0 (2.87)

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

Bijaya Man Sherchan Dinesh Prasad Shrestha Binod Thakali CA. Murali Dhar Tiwari
Chairperson Director Director Proprietor
M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Hem Nidhi Sharma Sagar Nepal
Director Finance Manager

Date: 2081 Bhadra 27
Place: Kathmandu
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Figures in NPR
2079-80 2078-79
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 3,119,607 (9,387,823)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 4,163,215 1,922,542
Finance Income (638,880) (435,600)
Provision for expenses - -
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets 341,304 -
‘Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) / decrease in Other Financial Assets (5,244,480) (1,464,535)
(Increase) / decrease in Bank Balance other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,869,000 1,173,000
(Increase) / decrease in Trade Receivables (4,131,758) -
(Increase) / decrease in Other Current Assets (63,910) (43,614)
Increase / (decrease) in Trade and other payables (26,989,937) (21,714,439)
Increase / (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 7,423,342 300,356
Cash generated from operations (26,137,743) (21,749,232)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (19,152,497) (29,650,112)
CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase)/decrease in Intangible assets under development (456,825,644) (561,327,570)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets (120,843,548) (198,311)
Acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment (63,300) (396,030)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets - -
Purchase of Financial Assets - -
Sales Proceeds of Property, plant and Equipment 300,000
Finance Income 638,380 435,600
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (576,793,613) (561,486,311)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan Prepayment - -
Increase in Borrowings 276,292,743 403,420,484
Increament in Share Capital 340,000,000 165,302,500
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 616,292,743 568,722,984
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20,346,633 (22,413,439)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of Period 7,302,913 29,716,353
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Period 27,649,546 7,302,913

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Bijaya Man Sherchan Dinesh Prasad Shrestha Binod Thakali CA. Murali Dhar
Chairperson Director Director Proprietor
M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Hem Nidhi Sharma Sagar Nepal
Director Finance Manager

Date: 2081 Bhadra 27
Place: Kathmandu
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Maya Khola Hydropower
Statement of Chang

Company Limited
es in Equity

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Figures in NPR

Particulars Share Capital Retained Earnings Advance towards Total
share capital

Balance at 1 Shrawan 2077 169,856,100 (24,189,542) 237,844,401 383,510,959
Profit for the year - (7,781,072) - (7,781,072)
Other comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income - (7,781,072) - 375,729,887
Issue of bonus shares - - - -
Dividends to shareholders - - - -
Issue of new shares 156,776,400 - - 156,776,400
Advance share capital - - (69,779,401) (69,779,401)
Balance at 31st Ashad 2078 156,776,400 (7,781,072) 168,065,000 462,726,886
Profit for the year - (9,387,823) - (9,387,823)
Other comprehensive income - 16,674,809 - 16,674,809
Total comprehensive income - 7,286,985 - 7,286,985
Issue of bonus shares - - - -
Dividends to shareholders - - - -
Issue of new shares 333,367,500 - - 333,367,500
Advance share capital - - (168,065,000) (168,065,000)
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 490,143,900 (494,087) - 635,316,371
Profit for the year - 3,119,607 - 3,119,607
Other comprehensive income - 2,131,366 - 2,131,366
Total comprehensive income - 5,250,973 - 5,250,973
Issue of bonus shares - - -
Dividends to sharcholders - - - -
Issue of new shares 340,000,000 - - 340,000,000
Advance share capital - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 830,143,900 4,756,886 - 980,567,344
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date
Bijaya Man Sherchan Dinesh Prasad Shrestha Binod Thakali CA. Murali Dhar Tiwari
Chairperson Director Director Proprietor

Hem Nidhi Sharma
Director

Date: 2081 Bhadra 27
Place: Kathmandu

Sagar Nepal
Finance Manager

%

M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Figures in NPR

Note no: 3
FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF NFRS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
(ICAN); with effect from 1 Shrawan, 2079, with a transition date of 1 Shrawan, 2078. These financial statements for the year ended 31 Ashad, 2080 are the first the
Company has prepared under NFRS. For all periods up to and including the year ended 32 Ashad, 2079 , the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with earlier issued Nepal Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as 'Previous GAAP".

The adoption of NFRS has been carried out in accordance with NFRS 1, First-time Adoption of NFRS. NFRS 1 requires that all NFRS and interpretations that are
issued and effective for the first NFRS financial statements be applied retrospectively and consistently for all financial years presented. Accordingly, the Company
has prepared financial statements which comply with NFRS for year ended 31 Ashad, 2080, together with the comparative information as at and for the year ended

32 Ashad. 2079 and the opening NFRS Balance Sheet as at 1 Shrawan. 2078. the date of transition to NFRS.
In preparing these NFRS financial statements, the Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with NFRS 1, as explained below. The

resulting difference between the carrying values of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements as at the transition date under NFRS and Previous GAAP have
been recognised directly in equity (retained earnings or another appropriate category of equity). This note explains the adjustments made by the Company in
restating its Previous GAAP financial statements, including the Statement of Financial Position as at 1 Shrawan, 2078 and the financial statements as at and for the
vear ended 32 Ashad. 2079.

A. Exemptions from retrospective application
NERS 1 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from retrospective application of certain requirements under NFRS. The Company has elected to apply the
following optional exemptions from retrospective application:

a) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the
date of transition to NFRS.

B. Exceptions to retrospective application
The Company has applied the following exceptions to the retrospective application of NFRS as mandatorily required under NFRS 1:

a) Estimates

On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is no necessity to revise the estimates
under NFRS, as there is no objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, estimates that were required under NFRS but not required under
Previous GAAP are made by the Company for the relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date.

b) Classification and measurement of financial assets
The classification of financial assets to be measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income is made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed on the date of transition to NFRS.

¢) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities.

C. Transition to NFRS - Reconciliations
The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the transition from Previous GAAP to NFRS in accordance
I.  Reconciliation of Equity as at 1 Shrawan, 2078.
II.  Reconciliation of Equity as at 32 Ashad, 2079.
III. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive income for the year ended 32 Ashad, 2079.
IV. Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows

Previous GAAP information has been reclassified/regrouped in accordance with NFRS, wherever necessary, based on the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 32 Ashad, 2079 and 31 Ashad, 2078.

I. Reconciliation of Equity as at 1 Shrawan, 2078

Note  Previously reported Reconciliation NFRS Balance
balance

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment A 10,196,165 (44,206) 10,151,959
Intangible assets A - 44,206 44,206
Intangible assets under development B 1,986,913,239 25,459,832 2,012,373,070
Other non-current assets C - 114,962,468 114,962,468

Current assets
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 29,716,353 - 29,716,353

Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents D 15,195,473 (3,702,000) 11,493,474
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI E 16,716,600 - 16,716,600

Other financial assets F 117,176,223 (112,848,353) 4,327,870
Current tax assets G - 887,884 887,884
Total assets 2,175,914,052 24,759,831 2,200,673.884
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Figures in NPR

Note no: 3
FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF NFRS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 326,632,500 168,065,000 494,697,500
Other equity H 111,334,555 (143,305,169) (31,970,614)
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1 1,379,859,528 167,727,178 1,547,586,706
Deferred Tax Liability J - - -
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings | 167,727,178 (167,727,178) -
Trade & Other Payables K 190,360,291 (16,820,334) 173,539,958
Other financial liabilities K - 16,820,334 16,820,334
Provisions - - -
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,175,914,052 24,759,831 2,200,673,884
I1. Reconciliation of Equity as at 1 Shrawan, 2079
Note  Previously reported Reconciliation NFRS Balance
balance
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment A 8,669,653 (27,392) 8,642,261
Intangible assets A - 27,391 27,391
Intangible assets under development B 2,539,679,560.06 34,021,081 2,573,700,641
Other non-current assets C 0 115,160,780 115,160,780
Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7,302,913 - 7,302,913
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents D 14,022,473 (3,702,000) 10,320,473
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI E 16,716,600 22,233,078 38,949,678
Other financial assets F 118,882,683 (113,090,278) 5,792,405
Other current assets G - 931,498 931,498
Total assets 2,705,273.882 55,554,158 2,760,828,041
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 660,000,000 - 660,000,000
Other equity H (74,679,518) 49,995,889 (24,683,629)
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1 1,656,007,191 10,000,000 1,666,007,191
Deferred Tax Liability J - 5,558,270 5,558,270
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings I 295,000,000 (10,000,000) 285,000,000
Trade and other payables K 168,946,208 (17,120,690) 151,825,519
Other financial liabilities K - 17,120,690 17,120,690
Provisions - -
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,705,273,882 55,554,158 2,760,828,041
III. Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Ashad, 2079
Note  Previously reported Reconciliation NFRS Balance
balance
Revenue L - 2,573,700,641 2,573,700,641
Cost of Sales L - 2,573,700,641 2,573,700,641

Gross profit
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Figures in NPR

Note no: 3
FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF NFRS

Other income 435,968 - 435,968
Administrative and other operating expenses M 16,462,498 (6,668,916) 9,793,582
Depreciation and amortisation expense N 1,922,542 (1,922,542) -
Finance Costs o - 30,209 30,209
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (17,949,072) 8,561,249 (9,387,823)
Income Tax Expense
Current tax - - -
Deferred tax - - -
Net Profit for the year (17,949,072) 8,561,249 (9,387,823)
Other comprehensive Income:
Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax P - 16,674,809 16,674,809
Total Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax (17,949,072) 25,236,058 7,286,985
A. Property, plant and equipment
Intangible Assets i.e. Software previously classified as Property, Plant and Equipment has now been reclassified under Intangible Assets.
B. Intangible assets under development
a. Staff and Salary expense which is used both in site and in the project are segregated into both "Intangible assets under development" and charged to Statement
of Profit or Loss in the ratio determined by the management.
b. License fee paid to DOED previously classified as 'Deposits’ have now been capitalised.
C. Other non current assets
Advance to Suppliers/ Contractors/ Sub-contractors previously classified under "Debtors, Advances and Other Receivables" now reclassified under Other non-
current assets.
D. Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
Deposits (World Link Deposit and Customs Department Deposit) has been reclassified to Other Financial Assets.
E. Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI
Investment made in promoter shares of Riverfalls Power Limited, and their gain/loss has been reclassified under head Financial Assets through OCIL
F. Other financial assets
Advance to Suppliers/ Contractors/ Sub-contractors previously classified under "Debtors, Advances and Other Receivables" now reclassified under Other non-
current assets.
G. Current tax assets
Advance Income Tax previously classified under "Debtors, Advances and Other Receivables" has been reclassifed under Current Tax Assets.
H. Other equity
a. Staff salary expenses which is used both in site and in the project are segregated into both "Intangible assets under development" and charged to Statement of
Profit or Loss in the ratio determined by the management. The depreciation for the year prior to date of transition is reflected directly in Other Equity.
b. Changes in Fair Value of Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI are adjusted through Fair Value Reserve in other equity.
I. Borrowings
Bridge Gap Loan previously classified under Borrowings (Short Term Loan), now reclassified under Borrowings - Non Current Liabilities.
J. Deferred Tax Liability
Deferred tax related to gain/loss in Investments in financial Assets Measured through OCIL.
K. Trade & Other Payables & Other financial liabilities
Trade and Other Payables under GAAP financial statements is segregated into Trade and other payables, and other financial liabilities.
L. Revenue and cost during construction phase
Under previous GAAP, revenue and cost during construction phase was not recognized considering that the project is on construction phase. However, as per
the requirement of IFRIC 12, revenue and cost incurred during the construction phase has been recognized in SOPL.
M. Administrative and other operating expenses

Staff and Salary expense which is used both in site and in the project are segregated into both "Intangible assets under development" and charged to Statement of
Profit or Loss in the ratio determined by the management.
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Figures in NPR

Note no: 3
FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF NFRS

N. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation expense are grouped into Administrative and other operating expenses.

O. Finance Costs
Finance Costs previously classified under 'Administrative and other operating expenses' has now been reclassified as 'Finance Costs'.

P. Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax
Gain or (loss) on fair value through OCI financial assets net of deferred taxation is presented under Other Comprehensive Income Section.

1V. Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows
There is no major presentation adjustment in statement of cash flow due to first time implementation of NFRS.
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)
Figures in NPR

Note no: 4
Property, plant and equipment

Buildings & Furniture & Office Vehicles Plant and Total

Structure Equipment Machinery

Cost
Balance at 1st Shrawan 2077 - 4,493,651 7,993,105 11,015,040 23,501,796
Additions - 21,630 - - 21,630
Revaluation and adjustments - - - - -
Transfer to PPE - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2078 - 4,515,281 7,993,105 11,015,040 23,523,426
Additions - 11,030 385,000 396,030
Revaluation and adjustments - - - - -
Transfer to PPE - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 - 4,526,311 7,993,105 11,400,040 23,919,456
Additions - 63,300 - - 63,300
Revaluation and adjustments - - - - -
Transfer to PPE - - - - -
Disposals - - - (1,365,040) (1,365,040)
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 - 4,589,611 7,993,105 10,035,000 22,617,716
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1st Shrawan 2077 - 2,403,939 3,894,121 4,793,747 11,091,807
Charge for the year - 526,669 819,797 933,194 2,279,660
Adjustment due to Revaluations and others - - - - -
Impairment Losses - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2078 - 2,930,608 4,713,918 5,726,941 13,371,467
Charge for the year - 398,926 655,837 850,965 1,905,728
Adjustment due to Revaluations and others - - - - -
Impairment Losses - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 - 3,329,534 5,369,755 6,577,906 15,277,195
Charge for the year - 315,019 524,670 518,564 1,358,253
Adjustment due to Revaluations and others - - - - -
Impairment Losses - - - - -
Disposals - - - (723,736) (723,736)
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 - 3,644,553 5,894,425 6,372,734 15,911,712
Net book value
At 1st Shrawan 2077 - 2,089,712 4,098,984 6,221,293 12,409,989
At 31st Ashad 2078 - 1,584,673 3,279,187 5,288,099 10,151,959
At 32nd Ashad 2079 - 1,196,777 2,623,350 4,822,134 8,642,261
At 31st Ashad 2080 - 945,058 2,098,680 3,662,266 6,706,004
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at Ashad 31, 2080 (16 July 2023)
Figures in NPR

Note no: 5
Intangible assets
Service C. i Comp Software Total

Arrangement Intangibles
Cost
Balance at 31st Ashad 2077 - 38,420 38,420
Additions - Externally acquired - 45,652 45,652
Other acquisitions internally developed - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2078 - 84,072 84,072
Additions - Externally acquired - - -
Other acquisitions internally developed - - -
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 - 84,072 84,072
Additions - Externally acquired 3,030,526,284 - 3,030,526,284
Other acquisitions internally developed - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 3,030,526,284 84,072 3,030,610,356
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 31st Ashad 2077 - 23,052 23,052
Charge for the year - 16,814 16,814
Impairment losses - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2078 - 39,866 39,866
Charge for the year - 16,814 16,814
Impairment losses - - -
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 - 56,681 56,681
Charge for the year 2,788,147 16,814 2,804,962
Impairment losses - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 2,788,147 73,495 2,861,643
Net book value
At 31st Ashad 2077 - 15,368 15,368
At 31st Ashad 2078 - 44,206 44,206
At 32nd Ashad 2079 - 27,391 27,391
At 31st Ashad 2080 3,027,738,137 10,577 3,027,748,714

Gross carrying amount of any fully amortised intangibles that are still - - -
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Note 6
Intangible assets under development
Particulars 31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
Land and Land Development - 17,019,990 16,582,623
Civil Works - 1,055,782,088 801,124,920
Environment Mitigation - 31,882,057 20,730,049
Infrastructure Development - 57,027,220 71,151,171
Hydromechanical Works - 404,110,058 337,040,897
Electromechanical Works - 361,544,624 362,990,261
Project Supervision and Management - 154,073,346 128,182,900
Miscellaneous and Insurance - 6,929,649 4,191,623
Site office Building - 154,093 -
Transmission Line & Switchyard - 43,599,094 4,250,282
Interest During Construction - 401,680,966 226,230,890
Project Development Expenses - 39,897,455 39,897,455
Total (A+B+C+D+E) - 2,573,700,641 2,012,373.,070

a) The Company is a developer of hydro electricity. The company has started generation of hydro electricity on 2080.03.22. Profit margin on construction
phase is assumed to be 0% (i.e. Revenue is recornised at Cost plus Zero percent markup) and accordingly revenue and cost during construction phase has
been recognized which is equal to actual construction cost during the period.

For more detail refer note 2.4 and note 2.17.

The power purchase agreement (PPA) with Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) was signed on 2070.08.30 and the financial closure has been completed on
2073.08.21. The extended Required Commercial Operation Date (RCOD) is 2079.10.03. As per PPA entered between MKHP and NEA, if the Actual
Commercial Operation Date is not later than 6 months of RCOD, the project shall not pay penalty and fines to NEA. Hence, the MKHP has not paid fines
and penalties to NEA.

¢) Refer Note no: 15 for the details in respect of assets hypothecated/Pledged/ mortgaged as security for borrowings.

Note no: 8

Other non-current assets

Particulars 31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
Advance to Suppliers/ Contractors/ Sub-contractors 236,004,328 115,160,780 114,962,468
Total 236,004,328 115,160,780 114,962,468

The company has provided advances to contractors for construction project and advances to other suppliers for purchase of materials required for the
construction. These advances will be reclassified to Intangible Assets under developmnent upon settlement with the contractors and suppliers. The advance
provided for land purchase will also be reclassified to Intangible Assets under development upon the transfer of all the risk and rewards related to the land

along with legal title is transferred to the company.

Note no: 9

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
Cash on hand 60,770 54,257 39,548
Cash at bank 27,588,776 7,248,656 29,676,805
Total 27,649,546 7,302,913 29,716,353
Note no: 10

Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars 31st Ashad 2080

32nd Ashad 2079

1st Shrawan 2078

Earmarked Balance with Banks
Margin money

Guarantee Margin 1,894,000.00 1,894,000 1,894,000

LC Margin 5.557.473.44 8.426.473 9,599,474
Total 7,451,473.44 10,320,473 11,493,474
Note no: 7

Other non-current assets

Particulars 31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
Receivables - Nepal Electricity Authority 4,131,758 - -
Total 4,131,758 - -
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Note no: 11

Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI

Particulars

Investment in U

ted Equity Instr

31st Ashad 2080

32nd Ashad 2079

1st Shrawan 2078

Riverfalls Power Limited (167,166 promoter shares of Rs. 100 per share)

Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments

Riverfalls Power Limited (167,166 promoter shares of Rs. 100 per share)

Total

- - 16,716,600
41,791,500 38,949,678 -
41,791,500 38,949,678 16,716,600

The cost basis of the above financial assets measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income is:

31st Ashad 2080

32nd Ashad 2079

1st Shrawan 2078

Riverfalls Power Limited (167,166 promoter shares of Rs. 100 per share)

Total

Note no: 12
Other financial assets
Particulars

Deposits
Other Receivables

Total

Note no: 13
Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Particulars
Advance Income Tax
Income Tax Liability

Total

Note no: 14
Share capital

A. Equity Share Capital
Authorized

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights

Issued

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights

Fully Paid

41,791,500 38,949,678 16,716,600
41,791,500 38,949,678 16,716,600
31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
3,002,000 3,002,000 3,002,000
8,034,885 2,790,405 1,325,870
11,036,885 5,792,405 4,327,870
31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
995,408 931,498 887,884
995,408 931.498 887,884

31st Ashad 2080

32nd Ashad 2079

1st Shrawan 2078

Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights

Advance for Share Capital
Total

1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 600,000,000
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 600,000,000
1,000,000,000 660,000,000 326,632,500

- - 168,065,000
1,000,000,000 660,000,000 494,697,500

B. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

Particulars

Authorized

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights

Issued

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights

Fully Paid

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights

Issue of new shares

Total

31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
10,000,000 10,000,000 6,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000 6,000,000

6,600,000 3,266,325 3,266,325
3,400,000 3,333,675 -
10,000,000 6,600,000 3,266,325
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Figures in NPR
C. Details of shareholding structure (Proportion)
Particulars 31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
Promotors Share 66% 100% 100%
General Public 34% 0% 0%
Total 100% 100% 100%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of NPR 100 per share. Every member holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights
in proportion to the member’s share of the paid up equity share capital.

Note no: 15
Other equity

Retained earnings Fair Value Reserve Total
Balance at 1 Shrawan 2077 (24,189,542) - (24,189,542)
Profit for the year (7,781,072) - (7,781,072)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Dividends to shareholders - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2078 (31,970,614) - (31,970,614)
Profit for the year (9,387,823) - (9,387,823)
Other comprehensive income - 16,674,809 16,674,809
Dividends to shareholders - - -
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 (41,358,437) 16,674,809 (24,683,629)
Profit for the year 3,119,607 - 3,119,607
Other comprehensive income - 2,131,366 2,131,366
Dividends to shareholders - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 (38,238,830.00) 18,806,175.00 (19,432,656.00)
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Note no: 16
Borrowings
Particulars
Measured at amortized cost
Secured Borrowings from Banks
Term loan
Bridge Gap Loan
Demand Loan

Total

Particulars

Term loan
Bridge Gap Loan
Demand Loan

Total

Particulars

Term loan
Bridge Gap Loan
Demand Loan

Total

31st Ashad 2080

32nd Ashad 2079

1st Shrawan 2078

1,941,283,241.40

1,656,007,191

1,379,859,528

286,016,693.31 10,000,000 167,727,178
- 285,000,000 -
2,227,299,934.71 1,951,007,191 1,547,586,706
Current
31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
25,000,000.00 - -
- 285,000,000 -
25,000,000.00 285,000,000 -
Non-Current
31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078

1,916,283,241.40

1,656,007,191

1,379,859,528

286,016,693.31 10,000,000 167,727,178
2,202,299,934.71 1,666,007,191 1,547,586,706

The credit facilities from the consortium banks - Citizens Bank International Limited, Himalayan Bank Limited and Prabhu Bank Limited are secured by the

following:

1. First charge by way of registered mortgage over the entire land, building, plant. Machineries, equipment and spares that are/ or to be created in the future
with or without financing to be owned by the project on the pari-passu basis in the favour of consortium banks.
2. First legal charge by way of charge over the entire current assets, present and future, created with or without the financing of the consortium banks owned
by the borrower including assignment over the receivables from NEA on pari-passu basis in favour of consortium banks.
3. First charge over receivables from NEA and other receivables to the consortium on pari-passu basis.
4. Authorised charge on the the Power Purchase Agreement signed between NEA and borrower for supply and delivery of energy (electricity) produced by
the borrower from its hydropower project Maya Khola Hydropower Project (14.90 MW) and Power Generation License of the borrower in the favour of

consortium banks.

5. Charge on escrow account maintained with the lead bank on proportionate basis.
6. Joint and several personal guarantees for total loan exposure of the following: Bijay Man Sherchan, Dinesh Prasad Shrestha, Binod Thakali and Hemnidhi

Sharma.

7. Pledge of entire shares owned by directors or held by shareholder company in the name of consortium banks.
8. Corporate Guarantee of M/s Pashupati Venture Capital Pvt. Ltd.

9. Assignment of project guarantee.

Note no: 17
Deferred Tax Liability/ Assets

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a tax rate of 25%. Deferred tax assets have been recognized in respect of all tax losses and other

temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets

Opening Balance as on 1 Sharwan

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognized in profit or loss
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognized in OCI

Closing balance as on Ashad end

31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
(5,558,269.50) - -
(710,456.00) (5,558,270) -
(6,268,725.50) (5,558,270) -

Details of the deferred tax liability, amounts recognized in profit or loss and amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are as follows:

g
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Particulars

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI

Total

Particulars

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI

Total

Particulars

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible assets
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI

Total

Note no: 18
Trade and other payables
Particulars

Audit Fees Payable

Lease rent payable
Meeting allowance payable
Retention money payable
Employee related accrual
Accounts payable

TDS Payable

Site Expenses Payable
Project Allowance Payable

Total

Note no: 19
Other financial liabilities
Particulars

Other payables
Total

Note no: 20
Provisions
Particulars

Provision for Leave Encashment
Provision for expenses

Asset/ (Liability)

(Charged)/Credited to
Profit or Loss and OCI

2079-80 2079-80

(6,268,726) (710,456)

(6,268,726) (710,456)

Asset/ (Liability) (Charged)/Credited to

Profit or Loss and OCI

2078-79 2078-79

(5,558,270) (5,558,270)

(5,558,270) (5,558,270)

Asset/ (Liability) (Charged)/Credited to

Profit or Loss and OCI

2077-78 2077-78

31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
446,000.00 111,500 83,625
399,300.00 - 18,360

- 34,000 102,000
107,657,039.36 121,377,933 101,486,391
4,901,369.40 2,280,395 1,454,384
8,409,659.91 26,791,840 66,750,315
2,214,712.92 965,130 2,808,042

- 137,220 454,341

807.500.00 127,500 382,500
124,835,581.59 151,825,519 173,539,958

31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
24,544.031.69 17,120,690 16,820,334
24,544,031.69 17,120,690 16,820,334

31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 1st Shrawan 2078
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Note no: 20

Revenue

Particulars For FY 2079-80 For FY 2078-79
Electricity Sales to NEA 5,024,460 -
Revenue during construction phase 456,825,644 2,573,700,641
Total 461,850,104 2,573,700,641
Note no: 21

Cost of Sales

Particulars For FY 2079-80 For FY 2078-79
Cost incurred during construction phase 456,825,644 2,573,700,641
Salaries and other employee cost 503,625 -
Repair and Maintenance - -
Depreciation and amortization 2,788,147 -
Royalty 91,018 -
Bay Charges 324,000 -
Total 460,532,434 2,573,700,641
Note no: 22

Other income

Particulars For FY 2079-80 For FY 2078-79
House Rent 638,880 435,600
Interest Income 138 368
Head Loss Compensation 21,251,386 -
Other Income 174,250 -
Total 22,064,654 435,968
Note no: 23

Administrative and other operating expenses

Particulars For FY 2079-80 For FY 2077-78
Salaries and other employee cost 591,756 995,250
Audit Fee and related expenses 339,000 113,000
AGM and Board Expenses - 25,835
Registration & renewal expenses 365,270 665,825
Advertisement Expenses 40,731 23,000
Communication Expenses 147,733 208,365
Lease rental expense 1,597,200 1,452,000
Insurance 226,303 237,544
IPO Related Expenses 6,277,633 -
Depreciation & Amortisation 1,375,067 1,922,542
Fuel Expenses 454,438 365,404
Meeting Allowance 70,584 163,522
Office Expenses 42,856 55,516
Printing & Stationary 188,404 217,517
Repair and Maintenance 298,303 233,855
Travel Expenses 75,260 1,544,002
Consultancy Expenses 57,500 690,000
Rating Expenses 509,559 613,967
Certification Expenses 163,850 73,450
Utility Expenses 85,684 116,691
Loss on sales of Fixed Assets 341,304 -
Other expenses 28,500 76,297
Total 13,276,935 9,793,582




A Ne

WOl, JAdl a1 33T dIftis HEme el

Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2080 (16 July 2023)

Figures in NPR
Note No: 24
Finance Costs
Particulars For FY 2079-80 For FY 2078-79
Interest Expenses 6,889,565 -
Bank Charges 96,217 30,209
Total 6,985,782 30,209
Note No: 25
Earnings per share
Particulars For FY 2079-80 For FY 2078-79
Profit for the year 3,119,607 (9,387,823)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 8,016,667 3,266,325
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Basi¢Face value of Rs. 100 per share) 0.39 2.87)
Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares - -
Weighted average number of Equity shares (including dilutive shares) outstanding 8,016,667 3,266,325
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Diluted (Face value of Rs. 100 per share) 0.39 (2.87)
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Note no: 26
Financial Instruments: Classifications and fair value measurements
Fair value measurements

Particulars Fair value Fair value Valuation
31st Ashad 2080 32nd Ashad 2079 hierarchy technique(s) and
key input(s)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

Except as detailed in the following table, the management consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial
statements approximate their fair values:

As at 31st Ashad 2080 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 27,649,546 - - 27,649,546
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,451,473 - - 7,451,473
Trade Receivables 4,131,758 - - 4,131,758
Other financial assets 11,036,885 - - 11,036,885

Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI 41,791,500 - - 41,791,500

Total Financial Assets 92,061,164 - - 92,061,164

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost:

Loans and borrowings 2,227,299,935 - - 2,227,299,935
Trade and other payables 124,835,582 - - 124,835,582
Other financial liabilities 24,544,032 24,544,032
Total Financial Liabilities 2,376,679,548 - - 2,376,679,548
As at 32nd Ashad 2079 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 7,302,913 - - 7,302,913
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 10,320,473 - - 10,320,473
Trade Receivables - - - -

Other financial assets 5,792,405 - - 5,792,405

Financial Assets carried at Fair Value
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI 38,949,678 - - 38,949,678

Total Financial Assets 62,365,470 - - 62,365.470

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost:

Loans and borrowings 1,951,007,191 - - 1,951,007,191
Trade and other payables 151,825,519 - - 151,825,519
Other financial liabilities 17,120,690 - - 17,120,690
Total Financial Liabilities 2,119,953,400 - - 2,119,953,400
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Note No: 26
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Relationship
The following are the related parties of the company:
Relationship Related Parties
1) Maya Agro Firm Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary
2) Pashupati Venture Capital Pvt. Ltd. Promotor
(b) Those charged with governance, Key Management Personnel and transaction with them
Those charged with governance include members of Board of directors namely:
Name Designation Transaction Current year Previous Year
1. Bijaya Man Sherchan Chairperson Salary & Allowance 3,218,196 4,103,892
2. Dinesh Prashad Shrestha Director Project Allowance 300,000 600,000
3. Binod Thakali Director Project Allowance 600,000 600,000
4. Hem Nidhi Sharma Director Project Allowance 600,000 300,000
There are no other facilities provided to those charged with governance and key management personnel.
(d) Other related party transactions
Name of the related party Nature of transaction Transaction Closing Balance

Current Year Previous year Current Year Previous year
1) Maya Agro Firm Pvt. Ltd. Land Advance - - 10,662,535 -
2) Pashupati Venture Capital Pvt. Ltd. Advances - - - 360,743
Note No: 27
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Particulars
a) Bank Guarantee
Bank Name Purpose Current Year Previous year
Citizens Bank International Limited As per requirement of Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Nepal 8,940,000 8,940,000

Electricity Authority (NEA)*

Citizens Bank International Limited Provided to Department of Electricity Department 10,000,000 10,000,000

* This performance guarantee is released after the successful commercial operation of the project since 2080 Ashad 22.

Note No: 28
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Particulars

a) Required Commercial Operation Date (RCOD)

The power purchase agreement (PPA) with Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) was signed on 2070.08.30 and the financial closure has been completed on
2073.08.21. The extended Required Commercial Operation Date (RCOD) is 2079.10.03. As per PPA entered between MKHP and NEA, if the Actual
Commercial Operation Date is not later than 6 months of RCOD, the project shall not pay penalty and fines to NEA. Hence, the MKHP has not paid fines and
penalties to NEA.
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2.2

Background

Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited (MKHCL) is registered under the Companies Act 2063 and under the
existing laws of Nepal, for the purpose of implementation, ownership, and operation of the hydroelectricity
generation project with its registered office at Dhumbarahi, Kathmandu, Nepal. The company was registered on
2067-02-20 as a private limited company and later converted into a public limited company on 2073-08-20.
MKHCL has obtained approval for the development of 14.90 MW Maya Khola Hydropower Project located in
Sankhuwasabha district. The project is run of river (ROR) type. The company has obtained the generation license
from the Ministry of Energy, Water Resources, and Irrigation; Department of Electricity Development (DoED) on
2071/02/26 with validity till 2106/02/25 BS. The power purchase agreement (PPA) with Nepal Electricity
Authority (NEA) was signed on 2070-08-30 for the purchase of electricity generated from a 14.90 MW
hydroelectric project. The financial closure was completed on 2073.08.21. The extended Required Commercial
Operation Date (RCOD) was fixed to be on 2079-10-03. The company successfully started the commercial
operation on 2080-03-22.

The financial statements apply to the financial year ended 31% Ashad 2080 (16% July 2023). In the Financial
Statements, Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited has been referred to as “MKHCL” or “the Company”.

The accompanying financial statements have been approved for publication by the Board of Directors of the
MKHCL in its meeting held on Bhadra 27, 2081. The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation and measurement

i. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The Financial Statements have also
been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentational requirements of the Company Act, 2063 of Nepal.

ii. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been
classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of products
and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification
of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in the functional and presentation currency of the Company i.e., the
Nepalese Rupee (“NPR”) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates.

iii. Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for certain material items that have
been measured at fair value as required by the relevant NFRS and explained in the ensuing policies below.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The Company makes certain estimates and
assumptions regarding future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in current and future periods. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
primarily include: -
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2.3

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such
a life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and furthermore their likely economic
life, based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly,
depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

Impairment of property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is
usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates
on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates
and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above-mentioned factors could
impact on the carrying value of assets.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

A significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.

Property, plant and equipment

i.  All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

ii. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss
(except allocated to intangible assets under development) during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

iii. The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the asset separately, if the
component/part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially
different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful lives; the
remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

iv. The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

v. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

vi. Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress account
(CWIP). At the point when an asset starts operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Where
an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former
condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or
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2.4
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2.6

restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a
corresponding liability is recognized. Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalized.

Intangible Assets under Development

Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited has business of generation of hydro power energy and for this it has
obtained license from Nepal Government which is valid till 2106/02/25 B.S. Further, upon the expiration of the
term, the company shall arrange for the transfer to NEA all the ownership interest in the project for a nominal
consideration of 1 Rupee”.

The service concession of Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited is accounted for under the Intangible Asset
Model according to IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements. Replacements and extensions are capitalized as
intangible assets and amortized over the remaining useful life of the concession. Amortization of intangible assets
will begin from the date of commercial operation. Refer note 2.17 for policy regarding service concession
arrangement and refer Note 6 for detail of intangible assets under development.

For accounting purposes, it is assumed that the profit margin during construction phase is assumed to be Nil. All
the expenses incurred during the suspended period have been fully charged to revenue on the basis of
management’s best estimates considering status of the project.

Depreciation and Amortization

i.  Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than properties under construction) less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.

ii. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

iii. Depreciation is provided on the diminishing balance method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets
determined by the management. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is charged on a pro-rata basis in the
year of purchase. The useful life of the assets and the corresponding rates at which the assets are
depreciated/amortized are as follows: -

Category of asset Estimated useful life Depreciation Rate
Buildings & Structure 20-25 years 5% WDV
Furniture & Office Equipment 4-7 years 25% WDV
Vehicles 5-8 years 20% WDV
Plant and Machinery 6-9 years 15% WDV
Software 5 years SLM
Intangible assets (SCA) 312 Months SLM

Useful life is either the period of time which the asset is expected to be used, or the number of production or
similar units expected to be obtained from the use of asset.

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

iv. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease or estimated useful life, whichever is lower,
on straight line basis.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

i. At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
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2.8
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cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

ii. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

iii. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

iv. Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

v. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are incurred in the
period in which they occur. In determining the borrowing cost eligible for capitalizations under Intangible Assets
under Development, any investment income i.e., interest income derived on Bank Call Account is deducted from
the borrowing cost incurred in gross.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank overdrafts
as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Inventories

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are stated at
the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

2.10 Foreign currency transactions

i.  The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic environment in which
it operates. The functional currency of the Company is the Nepalese Rupee (NPR).

ii. In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

iii. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

iv. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

v. Exchange differences on monetary items (excluding foreign currency borrowing) are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
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2.11 Employment Benefits
The Company has schemes of employment benefits namely provident fund, gratuity fund, and accumulated leave
payable as per its personnel bylaw.

Defined contribution plan — Provident Fund and Gratuity
The Company has paid provident funds and gratuity to the employees as required by the Labour Act 2074.

Short-term and long-term employment benefits
i. A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the period when the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
ii.  Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

iii.  Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the
obligation as at the Balance sheet date determined based on actual calculation as per Personnel Bye Laws of
the company. An actuarial valuation of compensated absence has not been done as the amount is not
significant.

2.12 Taxation
Income Tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current taxes and deferred taxes. Income tax is recognized
in the profit or loss statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity.

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the balance sheet date.

Tax Exemption

As per section 11(3gha), of Income Tax Act, 2058 Nepal, Institution having license to generate, transmit and
distribute electricity shall be provided 100% tax exemption up to 10 years and 50% tax exemption up to subsequent
5 years if the commercial electricity generation, transmission, or distribution commences up to Chaitra 2084 B.S.

Deferred tax

i.  Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates at the balance sheet date.

ii. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Hence, at this point, deferred tax assets have not been
recognized against deductible temporary differences. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

iii. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.13 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split
and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest
and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares,
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by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

2.14 Provisions, contingencies and commitments

i.  Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

ii. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

ili. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss (except allocated to
intangible asset under development as referred in 2.4) net of any reimbursement.

iv. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

v. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision
is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected
net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognizes any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

vi. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. Contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.

vii. A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity.

viii. Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets.

ix. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

2.15 Financial Instruments

i. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract
embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee
contracts are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income/ expense arising on financial instruments after applying an effective interest rate is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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MKHCL has not amortized the loan origination fees paid to the consortium banks, as the impact of amortization
over the life of the loan is immaterial.

iii. Financial assets

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company in respect of equity
investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures) which are not held for trading has made an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity
instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument-by-instrument basis at the time of initial
recognition of such equity investments.

Financial assets not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at
fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the shorter maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and fair
value through the statement of profit of loss. The company recognizes impairment loss on trade receivables using
the expected credit loss model. For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial
recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognized. A loss allowance equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses is recognized if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly
increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial

asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under NFRS 9.

i.  Ifthe Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

ii. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amounts measured at the
date of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognized in statement of profit or loss or retained
earnings, as applicable.

iv. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest
bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the
statement of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

De-recognition of financial liability

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

vi. Fair Value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investment in equity instruments at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:
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Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

2.16 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement convey a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or
an operating lease.

The company as a lessee

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying

asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the company assesses

whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

a. The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the company.

b. The company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract the
company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The company assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.17 Service concession arrangements

Under IFRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements applies to public-to-private service concession arrangements

if:

a. The grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it
must provide them, and at what prices: and

b. The grantor controls through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise any significant residual interest
in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement

c. Is the infrastructure constructed or acquired by the operator from a third party for the purpose of the service
arrangement OR is the infrastructure existing infrastructure of the grantor to which the operator is given access
for the purpose of the service arrangement?

Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life (whole life of
assets) is within the scope of this IFRIC if the conditions in (a) above are met.

These arrangements are accounted for on the basis of below mentioned models depending on the nature of
consideration and relevant contract law.

Financial asset model
The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
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Unconditional contractual right is established when the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the operator (a)
specific or determinable amount; (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users of the public
services and specified or determinable amounts.

Intangible asset model

The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the Group, being an operator, receives a right (a license) to
charge users of the public service. A right to charge users of a public service is not an unconditional right to receive
cash because the amounts are contingent on to the extent that public uses the services. Both type of arrangements
may exist within a single contract to the extent that the grantor has given an unconditional guarantee of payment
for the construction and the operation i.e., considered as a financial asset and to the extent that the operator has to
rely on the public using the service in order to obtain payment, the operation has an intangible asset.

The Company is constructing a hydro power project after obtaining license from DoED and will maintain and
service the infrastructure during the concession period up to 2106/02/25 BS. The concession arrangement provides
MKHCL obligation to construct the hydro power, generate electricity and sell the same to Nepal Electricity
Authority at rates agreed as per Power Purchase agreement. Further, the concession arrangement gives MKHCL
the right to use the hydro power project for generating electricity and earn revenue by selling electricity to NEA.
The right to consideration gives rise to an intangible asset and accordingly, the intangible asset model is applied.

2.18 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, liquidity, and credit risk, which may adversely impact
the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company's Board and senior management has overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management policies
are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Risk Management is done by the Company's management that provides assurance that the Company's financial
risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured,
and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty including its subsidiaries and associates will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only
dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored. In addition, the Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial
guarantees given to banks provided by the Company. The Company’s maximum exposure in this respect is the
maximum amount the Company could have to pay if the guarantee is called on. This amount has been recognized
in the financial position as Current liabilities.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations. Since, in case of KEL, the interest rate risk is not much
influenced by market forces, it has minimal risk associated with the interest rate fluctuations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its
liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and
stressful conditions. A material and sustained shortfall in our cash flow could create potential business continuity
risk.
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The Company's Finance department regularly monitors the cash position to ensure it has sufficient cash on-going
basis to meet operational needs.

2.19 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the company. The Company manages its capital to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is
based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-
to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity
S0 as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its
business. The Company's focus is on keeping a strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well
as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the
Company. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary, adjust, its capital
structure.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
M/S Maya Kholo Hydropower Company Limited

Opinion

WI; have audited the financial statements of Maya Kholo Hydropower Company Limited
which comprises the Statement of Financial Position (SOFP) as at 31% Ashad 2081
(Corresponding tol5 July 2024) and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended and notes to the financial
statements including a summary of sigaificant accounting policies.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanation provided to us, the
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the organization as at 31* Ashad 2081 (Corresponding to15™ July 2024), and its
financial performance and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NRFS).

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Company in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing
(NAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the company in accordance with Code of Ethics issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal together with ethical requirements that are relevant to the
audit of the company and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
31 Ashad 2081. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. However, there is no reportable key audit matters of the
company as of 31 Ashad 2081.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the
Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based

()



ol Adl aar 3mal daiftfes Heneur Hail

M Tiwari & Associates fartigur Murietpslity 31,
Tyangla, P.0. Box 12136,

Chartered Accountants Kathmandu, Nepal

tiwarimuralidhiar@gmail.com Tel: 4331060, Mob:9861583579

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial
Statements in accordance with NFRS and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Financial Statement that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing as applicable the matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of’ accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cause significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosure in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
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to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, further events or conditions may cause
the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures and whether the Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and too communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have determined to communicate following matters in accordance with the
requirements of Companies Act 2063 and other regulatory requirements.

e We have obtained all the information and the explanation which to the best of our
knowledge and belief, where necessary for the purpose of our audit.

e Based on our audit, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company.

e The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with this by this report are
in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by the Company.

e In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
and from our examination of the books of accounts of the Company we have not
come across any case where the Board of Directors or any office bearer of the
Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law, or committed any
misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the Company and violated the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2063 or acted in a manner, as would jeopardize
the interest and security of the Company and it’s shareholders.

CA Murali Dhar Tiwari il

Proprietor M Tiwari & Associates:"
Chartered Accountants B

Date: 2081.09.25

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
UDIN: 250110CA00064JrhRu
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)
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Figures in NPR

Note
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 5,500,664 6,706,004
Intangible assets 4 3,184,011.826 3,027,748,714
Other non-current assets 5 62,430,416 236.004.328
Total Non-Current Assets 3,251,942,906 3,270,459,046
Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 4,179,073 27,649,546
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 5,260,473 7,451,473
Trade Receivables 8 41,686,643 4,131,758
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI 9 61,700,971 41,791,500
Other financial assets 10 5,692,068 11,036,885
Current tax assets 11 1,059,317 995,408
Total current assets 119,578,545 93.056,571
Total assets 3.371.521.451 3.363.515.617
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 12 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
Other equity 13 (332.152.350) (19.432.655)
Total Equity 667,847,650 980.567.345
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 2,224,605,290 2,202,299,935
Deferred Tax Liability 15 11.246.094 6,268,726
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2.235.851.383 2.208.568.660
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 135,000,000 25,000,000
Trade & Other Payables 16 209,099,624 124,835,581
Other financial liabilities 17 123,722,794 24,544,032
Provisions 18 - -
Total Current Liabilities 467.822.417 174,379.612
Total Liabilities 2,703,673.801 2,382,948,272

Total Equity and Liabilities 3.371.521.451 3.363.515.617

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date

Dinesh Prasad Shrestha Ramesh Raj Siwakoti Binod Thakali CA. Murali Dhar Tiwari
Chairperson Director Director Proprietor
M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Hem Nidhi Sharma Sagar Nepal
Director Finance Manager

Date: 2081/09/25
Place: Kathmandu
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Figures in NPR

Note 2080-81 2079-80

Revenue 19 119,454,439 461,850,104
Cost of Sales 20 154,906,152 460,532,434
Gross profit (35,451,713) 1,317,670
Other income 21 4,742,029 22,064,654
Administrative and other operating expenses 22 24,188,775 13,276,935
Finance Costs 23 272,753,337 6,985,782
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (327,651,797) 3,119,607
Income Tax Expense
Current tax _ }
Deferred tax - -
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations (327,651,797) 3,119,607
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods

i. Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through OCI 19,909,471 2,841,822

ii. Acturial Gain/(Loss) on defined Employment benefit - -
iii. Gain/Loss on Revaluation - -
iv. Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (4,977,368) (710,456)
Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax 14,932,103 2,131,366
Total Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax (312,719,695) 5,250,973
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 100 each

Basic Earnings per share - Rs. 24 (32.77) 0.39
Diluted Earnings per share - Rs. 24 (32.77) 0.39

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date

Dinesh Prasad Shrestha Ramesh Raj Siwakoti Binod Thakali CA. Murali Dhar Tiwari
Chairperson Director Director Proprietor
M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Hem Nidhi Sharma Sagar Nepal
Director Finance Manager

Date: 2081/09/25
Place: Kathmandu
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

Figures in NPR
2080-81 2079-80
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year (327,651,797) 3,119,607
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 129,002,345 4,163,215
Finance Income (638,380) (638,380)
Provision for expenses - -
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets - 341,304
Working capital adjustments:
(Increase) / decrease in Other Financial Assets 5,344,817 (5,244,480)
(Increase) / decrease in Bank Balance other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,191,000 2,869,000
(Increase) / decrease in Trade Receivables (37,554,884) (4,131,758)
(Increase) / decrease in Other Current Assets (63,909) (63,910)
Increase / (decrease) in Trade and other payables 84,264,043 (26,989,938)
Increase / (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 99,178,762 7,423,342
Cash generated from operations 153,359,829 (26,137,744)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (45,928.,503) (19,152,498)
CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase)/decrease in Intangible assets under development - (456,825,644)
(Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets 173,573,912 (120,843,548)
Acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment - (63,300)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets (284,060,117) -
Purchase of Financial Assets - -
Sales Proceeds of Property, plant and Equipment - 300,000
Finance Income 638,880 638,880
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (109,847,325) (576,793,613)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan Prepayment - -
Increase in Borrowings 132,305,355 276,292,743

Increament in Share Capital 340,000,000
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 132,305,355 616,292,743
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (23,470,473) 20,346,632
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of Period 27,649,545 7,302,913
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Period 4,179,072 27,649,545

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Dinesh Prasad Shrestha Ramesh Raj Siwakoti Binod Thakali CA. Murali Dhar Tiwari
Chairperson Director Director Proprietor

M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Hem Nidhi Sharma Sagar Nepal
Director Finance Manager

Date: 2081/09/25
Place: Kathmandu
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

Figures in NPR

Particulars Share Capital Retained Earnings Advance towards Total
share capital
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 660,000,000 (24,683,629) - 635,316,371
Profit for the year - 3,119,607 - 3,119,607
Other comprehensive income - 2,131,366 - 2,131,366
Total comprehensive income - 5,250,973 - 5,250,973

Issue of bonus shares - - -
Dividends to shareholders - - - -

Issue of new shares 340,000,000 - - 340,000,000
Advance share capital - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 1,000,000,000 (19,432,655) - 980,567,344
Profit for the year - (327,651,797) - (327,651,797)
Other comprehensive income - 14,932,103 - 14,932,103
Total comprehensive income - (312,719,695) - (312,719,695)

Issue of bonus shares - - -
Dividends to shareholders - - - -
Issue of new shares - - - -
Advance share capital - -

Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 1,000,000,000 (332,152,350) - 667,847,649

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date

Dinesh Prasad Shrestha Ramesh Raj Siwakoti Binod Thakali CA. Murali Dhar Tiwari
Chairperson Director Director Proprietor
M Tiwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Hem Nidhi Sharma Sagar Nepal
Director Finance Manager

Date: 2081/09/25
Place: Kathmandu
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Figures in NPR

Note no: 3
Property, plant and equipment

Buildings & Furniture & Office Vehicles Plant and Total

Structure Equipment Machinery

Cost
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 - 4,526,311 7,993,105 11,400,040 23,919,456
Additions - 63,300 - - 63,300
Revaluation and adjustments - - - - -
Transfer to PPE - - - - -
Disposals - - - (1,365,040) (1,365,040)
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 - 4,589,611 7,993,105 10,035,000 22,617,716
Additions - - - - -
Revaluation and adjustments - - - - -
Transfer to PPE - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 - 4,589,611 7,993,105 10,035,000 22,617,716
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 - 3,329,534 5,369,755 6,577,906 15,277,195
Charge for the year - 315,019 524,670 518,564 1,358,253
Adjustment due to Revaluations and others - - - - -
Impairment Losses - - - - -
Disposals - - - (723,736) (723,736)
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 - 3,644,553 5,894,425 6,372,734 15,911,712
Charge for the year - 236,265 419,736 549,340 1,205,340
Adjustment due to Revaluations and others - - - - -
Impairment Losses - - - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 - 3,880,818 6,314,161 6,922,074 17,117,052
Net book value
At 32nd Ashad 2079 - 1,196,777 2,623,350 4,822,134 8,642,261
At 31st Ashad 2080 - 945,058 2,098,680 3,662,266 6,706,004
At 31st Ashad 2081 - 708,794 1,678,944 3,112,926 5,500,664
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at Ashad 31, 2081 (15 July 2024)

Figures in NPR
Note no: 4
Intangible assets
Service Concession Computer Software Total
Arr 1 ibl
Cost
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 - 84,072 84,072
Additions - Externally acquired 3,030,526,284 - 3,030,526,284
Other acquisitions internally developed - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 3,030,526,284 84,072 3,030,610,356
Additions - Externally acquired 284,060,117 - 284,060,117
Other acquisitions internally developed - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 3,314,586,401 84,072 3,314,670,473
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 - 56,681 56,681
Charge for the year 2,788,147 16,814 2,804,962
Impairment losses - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 2,788,147 73,495 2,861,643
Charge for the year 127,786,428 10,577 127,797,005
Impairment losses - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 130,574,575 84,072 130,658,647
Net book value
At 32nd Ashad 2079 - 27,391 27,391
At 31st Ashad 2080 3,027,738,137 10,577 3,027,748,714
At 31st Ashad 2081 3,184,011,826 - 3,184,011,826

Gross carrying amount of any fully amortised intangibles that are still in use -

A
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
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Figures in NPR

Note no: 5
Other non-current assets
Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Advance to Suppliers/ Contractors/ Sub-contractors 62,430,416 236,004,328
Total 62,430,416 236,004,328
Note no: 6
Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Cash on hand 180,561 60,770
Cash at bank 3,998,512 27,588,776
Total 4,179,073 27,649,546
Note no: 7
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Earmarked Balance with Banks
Margin money
Guarantee Margin - 1,894,000
LC Margin 5,260,473 5,557,473
Total 5,260,473 7,451,473
Note no: 8
Trade Receivables
Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Receivables - Nepal Electricity Authority 41,686,643 4,131,758
Total 41,686,643 4,131,758
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
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Figures in NPR

Note no: 9
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI

Particulars

Investment in Quoted Equity Instruments
Riverfalls Power Limited (167,166 promoter shares of Rs. 100 per share)

Total

The cost basis of the above financial assets measured at Fair value through other comprehensive income is:

Riverfalls Power Limited (167,166 promoter shares of Rs. 100 per share)

Total

Note no: 10
Other financial assets
Particulars

Deposits
Prepaid & Other Receivables

Total

Note no: 11
Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Particulars
Advance Income Tax
Income Tax Liability

Total

Note no: 12
Share capital

A. Equity Share Capital

Authorized

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights

Issued

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights

Fully Paid

Ordinary Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights
Advance for Share Capital

Total

3

31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
61,700,971 41,791,500
61,700,971 41,791,500

31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
16,716,600 16,716,600
16,716,600 16,716,600

31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080

3,002,000 3,002,000
2,690,068 8,034,885
5,692,068 11,036,885
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
1,059,317 995,408
1,059,317 995,408
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Figures in NPR

B. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Authorized

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights 10,000,000 10,000,000
Fully Paid

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each with voting rights 10,000,000 6,600,000
Issue of new shares - 3,400,000
Total 10,000,000 10,000,000

C. Details of shareholding structure (Proportion)

Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080

Promotors Share 66% 66%
General Public 34% 34%
Total 100% 100%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of NPR 100 per share. Every member holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights
in proportion to the member’s share of the paid up equity share capital.

Note no: 13
Other equity

Retained earnings Fair Value Reserve Total
Balance at 32nd Ashad 2079 (41,358,437) 16,674,809 (24,683,628)
Profit for the year 3,119,607 - 3,119,607
Other comprehensive income - 2,131,366 2,131,366
Dividends to shareholders - - -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2080 (38,238,830) 18,806,175 (19,432,655)
Profit for the year (327,651,797) (327,651,797)
Other comprehensive income 14,932,103 14,932,103
Dividends to shareholders -
Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 (365,890,627) 33,738,278 (332,152,350)
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)

Figures in NPR
Note no: 14
Borrowings
Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080

Measured at amortized cost

Secured Borrowings from Banks

Term loan 2,198,455,584 1,941,283,241
Bridge Gap Loan 86,149,706 286,016,693
Demand Loan - -
Working Capital Loan 75,000,000
Total 2,359,605,290 2,227,299,935
Current
Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Term loan 60,000,000 25,000,000
Bridge Gap Loan -
Demand Loan -
Working Capital Loan 75,000,000
Total 135,000,000 25,000,000
Non-Current
Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Term loan 2,138,455,584 1,916,283,241
Bridge Gap Loan 86,149,706 286,016,693
Demand Loan - -
Working Capital Loan -
Total 2,224,605,290 2,202,299,935

The credit facilities from the consortium banks - Citizens Bank International Limited, Himalayan Bank Limited and Prabhu Bank Limited are secured
by the following:

1. First charge by way of registered mortgage over the entire land, building, plant. Machineries, equipment and spares that are/ or to be created in the
future with or without financing to be owned by the project on the pari-passu basis in the favour of consortium banks.

2. First legal charge by way of charge over the entire current assets, present and future, created with or without the financing of the consortium banks
owned by the borrower including assignment over the receivables from NEA on pari-passu basis in favour of consortium banks.

3. First charge over receivables from NEA and other receivables to the consortium on pari-passu basis.

4. Authorised charge on the the Power Purchase Agreement signed between NEA and borrower for supply and delivery of energy (electricity)
produced by the borrower from its hydropower project Maya Khola Hydropower Project (14.90 MW) and Power Generation License of the borrower
in the favour of consortium banks.

5. Charge on escrow account maintained with the lead bank on proportionate basis.

6. Joint and several personal guarantees for total loan exposure of the following: Bijay Man Sherchan, Dinesh Prasad Shrestha, Binod Thakali and

Hemnidhi Sharma.

7. Pledge of entire shares owned by directors or held by shareholder company in the name of consortium banks.
8. Corporate Guarantee of M/s Pashupati Venture Capital Pvt. Ltd.
9. Assignment of project guarantee.

9y,
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Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024)
Figures in NPR

Note no: 15
Deferred Tax Liability/ Assets

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a tax rate of 25%. Deferred tax assets have been recognized in respect of all tax losses and

other temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management believe it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets

31st Ashad 2081

31st Ashad 2080

Opening Balance as on 1 Sharwan (6,268,726) (5,558,270)
Tax income/(expense) during the period recognized in profit or loss -

Tax income/(expense) during the period recognized in OCI (4,977,368) (710,456)
Closing balance as on Ashad end (11,246,094) (6,268,726)

Details of the deferred tax liability, amounts recognized in profit or loss and amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are as follows:

Particulars Asset/ (Liability) (Charged)/Credited to
Profit or Loss and OCI
2080-81 2080-81
Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Intangible assets - -
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI (11,246,094) (4,977,368)
Total (11,246,094) (4,977,368)
Particulars Asset/ (Liability) (Charged)/Credited to
Profit or Loss and OCI
2079-80 2079-80
Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Intangible assets - -
Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI (6,268,726) (710,456)
Total (6,268,726) (710,456)
Note no: 16
Trade and other payables
Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Audit Fees Payable 669,000 446,000
Lease rent payable 798,600 399,300
Meeting allowance payable 204,000 -
Retention money payable 117,340,508 107,657,039
Employee related accrual 3,916,216 4,901,369
Accounts payable 51,290,104 8,409,660
TDS Payable 6,641,104 2,214,712
Interest Payable 28,240,092
Site Expenses Payable - -
Project Allowance Payable - 807,500
Total 209,099,624 124,835,581
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Note no: 17
Other financial liabilities

Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080
Other payables 123,722,794 24,544,032
Total 123,722,794 24,544,032
Note no: 18

Provisions

Particulars 31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080

Provision for Leave Encashment - -
Provision for expenses - _
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Note no: 19
Revenue

Particulars
Electricity Sales to NEA
Revenue during construction phase

Total

Note no: 20
Cost of Sales

Particulars

Cost incurred during construction phase
Project Operating Expenses
Salaries and other employee cost
Site Mess Expenses

Site Office Expenses

Repair and Maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Royalty

Rebate Expenses

Electricity Expenses

Fuel Expenses

Bay Charges

Total

Note no: 21
Other income

Particulars

House Rent

Interest Income

Head Loss Compensation
Other Income

Total

Note no: 22

Administrative and other operating expenses

Particulars

Salaries and other employee cost
Audit Fee and related expenses
AGM and Board Expenses
Registration & renewal expenses
Compensation Expenses
Hospitality & Refreshment Expenses
Advertisement Expenses
Communication Expenses

Lease rental expense

Insurance

Staff Insurance

IPO Related Expenses
Depreciation & Amortisation
Fuel Expenses

Meeting Allowance

Office Expenses

Printing & Stationary

Repair and Maintenance

Travel Expenses

Consultancy Expenses

Share Registrar Expense

Rating Expenses

Certification Expenses

Utility Expenses

Loss on sales of Fixed Assets
Other expenses

Total

For FY 2080-81

For FY 2079-80

119,454,439 5,024,460
- 456,825,644
119,454,439 461,850,104

For FY 2080-81

For FY 2079-80

- 456,825,644
2,396,612

8,091,418 503,625
925,884
740,961

8,370,856 -

127,786,428 2,788,147

2,454,183 91,018
324,540
2,834,601
980,670

- 324,000

154,906,152 460,532,434

For FY 2080-81

For FY 2079-80

638,880 638,880
139 138

- 21,251,386
4,103,010 174,250
4,742,029 22,064,654

For FY 2080-81

For FY 2079-80

5,926,621 591,756
339,000 339,000
395,458 365,270

1,870,721

60,408 40,731
224,592 147,733

1,597,200 1,597,200

7,516,904 226,303
143,040

- 6,277,633

1,215,917 1,375,067
173,175 454,438
284,115 70,584

71,436 42,856
166,796 188,404
434,764 298,303

1,086,598 75,260

1,748,200 57,500

75,000
643,041 509,559

- 163,850
136,164 85,684

- 341,304

79,625 28,500
24,188,775 13,276,935
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Note No: 23
Finance Costs

Particulars

Interest Expenses

Bank Charges

Agency Fee

Loan Management Fees

Total

Note No: 24

Earnings per share

Particulars

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Basic

(Face value of Rs. 100 per share)

Add: Weighted average number of potential equity shares
Weighted average number of Equity shares (including dilutive shares) outstanding

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Diluted (Face value of Rs. 100 per share)

AN

For FY 2080-81

For FY 2079-80

265,291,812 6,889,565

27,963 96,217
5,568,250
1.865.313

272,753,337 6,985,782

For FY 2080-81

For FY 2079-80

(327,651,797) 3,119,607
10,000,000 8,016,667
(32.77) 0.39
10,000,000 8,016,667
(32.717) 0.39
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Note no: 25
Financial Instruments: Classifications and fair value measurements
Fair value measurements

Valuation
technique(s) and
key input(s)

Fair value
hierarchy

Fair value
31st Ashad 2081 31st Ashad 2080

Particulars

Financial assets:

Riverfalls Power Limited (167,166 promoter shares of Rs. 100 per share)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Except as detailed in the following table, the management consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognized in the financial

statements approximate their fair values:

As at 31st Ashad 2081 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets

Financial Assets carried at Fair Value

Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI 61,700,971 61,700,971 - -
Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 4,179,073 - - 4,179,073
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,260,473 - - 5,260,473
Trade Receivables 41,686,643 - - 41,686,643
Other financial assets 5,692,068 - - 5,692,068
Total Financial Assets 118,519,228 61,700,971 - 56,818,258
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost:

Loans and borrowings 2,359,605,290 - - 2,359,605,290
Trade and other payables 209,099,624 - - 209,099,624
Other financial liabilities 123,722,794 123,722,794
Total Financial Liabilities 2,692.,427,707 - - 2,692,427,707
As at 31st Ashad 2080 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets

Financial Assets carried at Fair Value

Investment in Financial Assets measured through OCI 41,791,500 41,791,500 - -
Financial assets carried at amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents 27,649,546 - - 27,649,546
Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,451,473 - - 7,451,473
Trade Receivables 4,131,758 - - 4,131,758
Other financial assets 11,036,885 - - 11,036,885
Total Financial Assets 92,061,164 41,791,500 - 50,269,664
Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost:

Loans and borrowings 2,227,299,935 - - 2,227,299,935
Trade and other payables 124,835,581 - - 124,835,581
Other financial liabilities 24,544,032 - - 24,544,032
Total Financial Liabilities 2,376,679,547 - - 2,376,679,547

O
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Figures in NPR
Note No: 26
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Relationship
The following are the related parties of the company:
Relationshi Related Parties
1) Maya Agro Firm Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary
2) Pashupati Venture Capital Pvt. Ltd. Promotor
(b) Those charged with governance, Key Management Personnel and transaction with them
Those charged with governance include members of Board of directors namely:
Name Designation Transaction Current year Previous Year
2. Dinesh Prashad Shrestha Executive Chairman Salary 765,888 300,000
3. Binod Thakali Director Project Allowance - 600,000
4. Hem Nidhi Sharma Director Project Allowance - 600,000
5.Ramesh Raj Shivakoti Director Project Allowance - -
There are no other facilities provided to those charged with governance and key management personnel.
(C) Other related party transactions
Name of the related party Nature of transaction Transaction Closing Balance
Current Year Previous year Current Year Previous year
1) Maya Agro Firm Pvt. Ltd. Land Advance - - 10,662,535 10,662,535
2) Pashupati Venture Capital Pvt. Ltd. Advances (104,695,000) - (108,595,000) (3,900,000)
Note No: 27
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Particulars
a) Bank Guarantee
Bank Name Purpose Current Year Previous year
Citizens Bank International Limited As per requirement of Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Nepal 8,940,000
Electricity Authority (NEA)* -
Citizens Bank International Limited Provided to Department of Electricity Department - 10,000,000
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2.2

Background

Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited (MKHCL) is registered under the Companies Act 2063 and under the
existing laws of Nepal, for the purpose of implementation, ownership, and operation of the hydroelectricity
generation project with its registered office at Dhumbarahi, Kathmandu, Nepal. The company was registered on
2067-02-20 as a private limited company and later converted into a public limited company on 2073-08-20.
MKHCL has obtained approval for the development of 14.90 MW Maya Khola Hydropower Project located in
Sankhuwasabha district. The project is run of river (ROR) type. The company has obtained the generation license
from the Ministry of Energy, Water Resources, and Irrigation; Department of Electricity Development (DoED) on
2071/02/26 with validity till 2106/02/25 BS. The power purchase agreement (PPA) with Nepal Electricity
Authority (NEA) was signed on 2070-08-30 for the purchase of electricity generated from a 14.90 MW
hydroelectric project. The financial closure was completed on 2073.08.21. The extended Required Commercial
Operation Date (RCOD) was fixed to be on 2079-10-03. The company successfully started the commercial
operation on 2080-03-22.

The financial statements apply to the financial year ended 31 Ashad 2081 (15" July 2024). In the Financial
Statements, Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited has been referred to as “MKHCL” or “the Company”.

The accompanying financial statements have been approved for publication by the Board of Directors of the
MKHCL in its meeting held on Poush 25, 2081. The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of Preparation and measurement

i. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The Financial Statements have also
been prepared in accordance with the relevant presentational requirements of the Company Act, 2063 of Nepal.

ii. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been
classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of products
and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or non-current classification
of assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are presented in the functional and presentation currency of the Company i.e., the
Nepalese Rupee (“NPR”) which is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates.

iii. Basis of measurement
These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for certain material items that have
been measured at fair value as required by the relevant NFRS and explained in the ensuing policies below.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management to exercise judgment in
the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The Company makes certain estimates and
assumptions regarding future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in current and future periods. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
primarily include: -
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2.3

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least once a year. Such
a life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and furthermore their likely economic
life, based on various internal and external factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly,
depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best information available to the Management.

Impairment of property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is
usually determined on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates
on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates
and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above-mentioned factors could
impact on the carrying value of assets.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

A significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.

Property, plant and equipment

i.  All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

ii. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss
(except allocated to intangible assets under development) during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

iii. The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/part of the asset separately, if the
component/part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is materially
different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their useful lives; the
remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

iv. The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

v. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

vi. Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress account
(CWIP). At the point when an asset starts operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Where
an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former
condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or
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2.4

2.5

2.6

restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a
corresponding liability is recognized. Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalized.

Intangible Assets under Development

Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited has business of generation of hydro power energy and for this it has
obtained license from Nepal Government which is valid till 2106/02/25 B.S. Further, upon the expiration of the
term, the company shall arrange for the transfer to NEA all the ownership interest in the project for a nominal
consideration of 1 Rupee”.

The service concession of Maya Khola Hydropower Company Limited is accounted for under the Intangible Asset
Model according to IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements. Replacements and extensions are capitalized as
intangible assets and amortized over the remaining useful life of the concession. Amortization of intangible assets
will begin from the date of commercial operation. Refer note 2.17 for policy regarding service concession
arrangement and refer Note 6 for detail of intangible assets under development.

For accounting purposes, it is assumed that the profit margin during construction phase is assumed to be Nil. All
the expenses incurred during the suspended period have been fully charged to revenue on the basis of
management’s best estimates considering status of the project.

Depreciation and Amortization

i.  Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets (other than properties under construction) less
their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.

ii. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

iii. Depreciation is provided on the diminishing balance method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets
determined by the management. Depreciation on additions to fixed assets is charged on a pro-rata basis in the
year of purchase. The useful life of the assets and the corresponding rates at which the assets are
depreciated/amortized are as follows: -

Category of asset Estimated useful life Depreciation Rate
Buildings & Structure 20-25 years 5% WDV
Furniture & Office Equipment 4-7 years 25% WDV
Vehicles 5-8 years 20% WDV
Plant and Machinery 6-9 years 15% WDV
Software 5 years SLM
Intangible assets (SCA) zrl] lzg/ég?élifo(ﬁemaining life as SLM

Useful life is either the period of time which the asset is expected to be used, or the number of production or
similar units expected to be obtained from the use of asset.

The estimated useful life, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

iv. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease or estimated useful life, whichever is lower,
on straight line basis.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

i. At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
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2.7

2.8

2.9

reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

ii. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

iii. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

iv. Ifthe recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

v. When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are incurred in the
period in which they occur. In determining the borrowing cost eligible for capitalizations under Intangible Assets
under Development, any investment income i.e., interest income derived on Bank Call Account is deducted from
the borrowing cost incurred in gross.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and demand deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank overdrafts
as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Inventories

Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories of stores, spare parts and loose tools are stated at
the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

2.10 Foreign currency transactions

i.  The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic environment in which
it operates. The functional currency of the Company is the Nepalese Rupee (NPR).

ii. In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

iii. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.

iv. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

v. Exchange differences on monetary items (excluding foreign currency borrowing) are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
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2.11 Employment Benefits
The Company has schemes of employment benefits namely provident fund, gratuity fund, and accumulated leave
payable as per its personnel bylaw.

Defined contribution plan — Provident Fund and Gratuity
The Company has paid provident funds and gratuity to the employees as required by the Labour Act 2074.

Short-term and long-term employment benefits
i. A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave in the period when the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.
ii.  Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

iii. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the
obligation as at the Balance sheet date determined based on actual calculation as per Personnel Bye Laws of
the company. An actuarial valuation of compensated absence has not been done as the amount is not
significant.

2.12 Taxation
Income Tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current taxes and deferred taxes. Income tax is recognized
in the profit or loss statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to equity.

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the balance sheet date.

Tax Exemption

As per section 11(3gha), of Income Tax Act, 2058 Nepal, Institution having license to generate, transmit and
distribute electricity shall be provided 100% tax exemption up to 10 years and 50% tax exemption up to subsequent
5 years if the commercial electricity generation, transmission, or distribution commences up to Chaitra 2084 B.S.

Deferred tax

i.  Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates at the balance sheet date.

ii. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. Hence, at this point, deferred tax assets have not been
recognized against deductible temporary differences. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

iii. Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2.13 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year is adjusted for treasury shares, bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split
and reverse share split (consolidation of shares).
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Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest
and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares,
by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be
converted at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date.

2.14 Provisions, contingencies and commitments

i.  Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

ii. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain.

iii. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss (except allocated to
intangible asset under development as referred in 2.4) net of any reimbursement.

iv. Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

v. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision
is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected
net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognizes any
impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

vi. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. Contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.

vii. A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity.

viii. Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets.

ix. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

2.15 Financial Instruments

i. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract
embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee
contracts are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.
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Income/ expense arising on financial instruments after applying an effective interest rate is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

MKHCL has not amortized the loan origination fees paid to the consortium banks, as the impact of amortization
over the life of the loan is immaterial.

iii. Financial assets

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company in respect of equity
investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures) which are not held for trading has made an
irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity
instruments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument-by-instrument basis at the time of initial
recognition of such equity investments.

Financial assets not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at
fair value through the statement of profit and loss.

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the shorter maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and fair
value through the statement of profit of loss. The company recognizes impairment loss on trade receivables using
the expected credit loss model. For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial
recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognized. A loss allowance equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses is recognized if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly
increased since initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial

asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under NFRS 9.

i.  If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.

ii. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amounts measured at the
date of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognized in statement of profit or loss or retained
earnings, as applicable.

iv. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Equity Instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest
bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the
statement of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

De-recognition of financial liability

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

v. Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

vi. Fair Value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as investment in equity instruments at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i)  In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

2.16 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement convey a right to use the asset or assets, even if that
right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or
an operating lease.

The company as a lessee

A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying

asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this definition the company assesses

whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

a. The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available to the company.

b. The company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract the
company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The company assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

The company has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical
expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are
recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.17 Service concession arrangements

Under IFRIC 12 — Service Concession Arrangements applies to public-to-private service concession arrangements

if:

a. The grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it
must provide them, and at what prices: and

b. The grantor controls through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise any significant residual interest
in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement

c. Is the infrastructure constructed or acquired by the operator from a third party for the purpose of the service
arrangement OR is the infrastructure existing infrastructure of the grantor to which the operator is given access
for the purpose of the service arrangement?

Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life (whole life of
assets) is within the scope of this IFRIC if the conditions in (a) above are met.

These arrangements are accounted for on the basis of below mentioned models depending on the nature of
consideration and relevant contract law.
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Financial asset model

The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
Unconditional contractual right is established when the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the operator (a)
specific or determinable amount; (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users of the public
services and specified or determinable amounts.

Intangible asset model

The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the Group, being an operator, receives a right (a license) to
charge users of the public service. A right to charge users of a public service is not an unconditional right to receive
cash because the amounts are contingent on to the extent that public uses the services. Both type of arrangements
may exist within a single contract to the extent that the grantor has given an unconditional guarantee of payment
for the construction and the operation i.e., considered as a financial asset and to the extent that the operator has to
rely on the public using the service in order to obtain payment, the operation has an intangible asset.

The Company is constructing a hydro power project after obtaining license from DoED and will maintain and
service the infrastructure during the concession period up to 2106/02/25 BS. The concession arrangement provides
MKHCL obligation to construct the hydro power, generate electricity and sell the same to Nepal Electricity
Authority at rates agreed as per Power Purchase agreement. Further, the concession arrangement gives MKHCL
the right to use the hydro power project for generating electricity and earn revenue by selling electricity to NEA.
The right to consideration gives rise to an intangible asset and accordingly, the intangible asset model is applied.

2.18 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, equity prices, liquidity, and credit risk, which may adversely impact
the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company's Board and senior management has overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The Company's risk management policies
are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.

The Risk Management is done by the Company's management that provides assurance that the Company's financial
risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured,
and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty including its subsidiaries and associates will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only
dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of
mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored. In addition, the Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to financial
guarantees given to banks provided by the Company. The Company’s maximum exposure in this respect is the
maximum amount the Company could have to pay if the guarantee is called on. This amount has been recognized
in the financial position as Current liabilities.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations. Since, in case of KEL, the interest rate risk is not much
influenced by market forces, it has minimal risk associated with the interest rate fluctuations.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its
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liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and
stressful conditions. A material and sustained shortfall in our cash flow could create potential business continuity
risk.

The Company's Finance department regularly monitors the cash position to ensure it has sufficient cash on-going
basis to meet operational needs.

2.19 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders of the company. The Company manages its capital to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is
based on management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-
to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity
so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its
business. The Company's focus is on keeping a strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well
as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the
Company. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary, adjust, its capital
structure.
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